# Mar. 22, 2016 West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee Minutes

**Present:** Larry Schubert, Mike Colaneri, Glenn Hearn and Ted Jochsberger

Absent with Regrets: Henry Geller and Vickie Thurber

Also Present: Rhonda Conley, Susan Feller and Angelia Prout

Mike made a motion seconded by Glenn to accept the 3/8/16 minutes as written.

**VOTE 4 YES 0 NO** 

**INVOICES:** None

#### ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCES

MHP Workshop: Rhonda stated she has no new information on the June workshop.

**Open Meeting Law Training:** Rhonda announced there will be an Open Meeting Law Training on May 5, 2016 at the Katherine Cornell Theater. The committee asked Rhonda to attend.

**Joint Affordable Housing Group (JAHG):** The next meeting will be Mar. 30th between 4-5:30 PM at the MVC building. Discussion will include Community Preservation Coalition.

**Town Meeting:** Town meeting will be Apr. 12th so there will not be an AHC meeting. Rhonda asked if there is a formal report that the CPC could see. They do not wish to duplicate what AHC has to say. There is no formal report or designated speaker.

**Selectmen Meeting:** Rhonda said the RFP is not ready for discussion yet.

#### **REPORTS**

**Board of Assessors:** Mike stated there are questions about the Courthouse Rd. Town Building (Old Fire Station) plot lines with adjoining property. Mike said the Selectmen asked the Board of Assessors to foot the bill for surveying the property which they will not do. Mike suggested to the committee that AHT do the survey with the promise of receiving the property for affordable housing with the Assessors doing the Title work for the town through town counsel. AHC members did not decide whether to approach the AHT.

**ZBA:** Larry stated the ZBA was dealing with a land owner who has 18 acres abutting town lot where Fire and Police Stations are located. Abutter is looking for easement across the town lot stating that the previous owner of town lot gave abutter an easement. Without the easement his land is landlocked but presently abutter is unable to find the legal paperwork giving the easement. Glenn stated there is another 100 acres behind the town lot in land court.

#### **ONGOING BUSINESS**

Lamberts Cove Corner Lot: No updates. Henry will be talking to abutters.

**School Property adjacent to Halcyon Way:** Ted stated there is an Ancient Way across the property. Mike said internal ways have been moved before as long as the entrance and exit remain the same. The question is who is in charge of the land the Town or the School.

**Hoff Refinance:** Rhonda stated that Town Counsel has the information and the refi will probably be handled the same as the Rooney refi. with a Certificate of Approval and Dollar Mortgage. AHC will be

asked to approve mortgage amount and sign the certificate. Do not have the mortgage terms from the bank as of yet.

Refinance and Resale Process: The committee reviewed the Process forms (see attached) dealing with the refinance and resale of affordable homes. *Mike made a motion seconded by Glenn to accept the Process form for refinancing with corrections.* VOTE 4 YES 0 NO *Mike made a motion seconded by Glenn to accept the Resale Process form with corrections.* VOTE 4 YES 0 NO

Larry asked that Rhonda create a letter to go with these forms to all affordable homeowners stating reason for these forms and sending of such for the AHC to review at next meeting.

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

**New Members:** Two people attended the meeting showing interest in joining the AHC, Susan Feller and Angelia Prout. Larry explained that the prospective members write letters to the Selectmen stating their interest. Rhonda stated there are 3 positions open-one member and two alternates. This means that only one will be a member and the other may hold an alternate position. The alternate does participate in the meetings and votes but the alternate's vote only counts if all members are not present.

Housing Inventory Contracting: Mike stated that Island Housing Trust (IHT) had approached the AHC about keeping an inventory of affordable housing for West Tisbury some time back and he feels it may be a good idea. Rhonda stated that she has an excel spread sheet but has been lax in keeping it up to date and that having a professional do so may work better. Larry said a meeting with IHT to explain their data keeping and cost should be scheduled for a future meeting. Rhonda is to ask the IHT if they are still interested in doing so and what management fees may entail. As this is a town expense it would have to follow procurement procedures Rhonda stated.

Adjourned at 8:15 PM

The next meeting will be Apr. 26, 2016 at 7PM in 2nd floor conference rm. Town Hall. The next AHT meeting will be Apr. 26, 2016 at 7:15 PM in 2nd floor conference rm. Town Hall.

Respectfully submitted by Rhonda Conley

#### **Attachments**

### West Tisbury Affordable Housing Refinance Review Procedure

Please note: This procedure is intended as a practical assist to owners and does not replace or contravene any particular term or requirement of a West Tisbury Housing Covenant or Deed Rider.

- 1. When the Owner of a West Tisbury property ("Homeowner") under a Housing Covenant or Deed Rider preserving long term affordability wishes to refinance their property, the Homeowner shall notify the Town Affordable Housing Committee (WTAHC) and the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority (DCRHA) in writing (addresses at end of procedures) of the Homeowner's intention (the Refinance "Notice"). WTAHC must review and approve all requests to refinance before you may close on a new loan. The Notice should state the full address of the property, the amount of the refinance or second mortgage requested a phone number where you can be reached during the day, an email address if available and, the reason for refinancing.
  - 2. Upon receipt of the Notice, staff of the WTAHC, West Tisbury Board of Assessors and DCRHA shall confer and determine the current Maximum Resale Price of the Property based upon the terms of the existing Covenant or Deed Rider.
  - 3. The Homeowner will be notified of the current Maximum Resale Price by phone followed by mailed confirmation within 21 business days of receipt of the Notice.
  - 4. At this time, the Homeowner shall also be supplied by WTAHC or DCRHA staff with a copy of the current Housing Covenant in use by the Town, Permitted Mortgage Agreement, Town \$1.00 Mortgage and Certificate of Approval for review with their lender regarding permissible terms of mortgage.
  - 5. The Homeowner will need to submit the following:
    - a. A copy of your complete loan application to the lending institution
    - b. A copy of the commitment letter from the lender. The commitment letter, or any written documentation, should provide information on the loan terms, including the interest rate, points, length of loan (15or 30 years), APR (annual percentage rate), and any other pertinent information.
    - c. A copy of the Good Faith Estimate. The Good Faith Estimate is provided by the lender and should provide information on the estimated closing costs.

WTAHC may also require the following depending on your deed rider (covenant) and will inform you of which documents are required in your particular situation.

• A copy of the deed rider. The deed rider is the document you signed at closing that describes the resale and refinance provisions for your particular property.

- An appraisal report. A complete copy of an appraisal report for the property, completed by a certified residential appraiser within the last 120 days. The home should be appraised as a (market rate or affordable rate property?)
- <u>Information on your monthly condominium fees (if any), your town's current tax</u> rate per thousands and monthly homeowner's insurance amount. You can provide this information in your letter requesting approval to refinance.

Within 21business days of the Homeowner's submission of the above, WTAHC will conclude its review and submit a written decision to the Homeowner.

- 6. At this juncture Town Counsel will step in to handle the documents for the mortgage (if so approved by WTAHC) closure. Preparation of closing documents by the Homeowner's attorney shall be the Homeowner's responsibility. Town Counsel shall prepare a current Housing Covenant, Permitted Mortgage Agreement, Town \$1.00 Mortgage and Certificate of Approval (all documents to be included in the closing). Town Counsel shall collect the required signatures of the Board of Selectmen and WTAHC representative and notarization of such documents. This should be completed within 30 business days of the WTAHC review and written decision. These documents shall not be altered by the Lending Institute, Homeowner or Homeowner's Counsel. If changes to any of these documents are contemplated they must be brought before the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee and approved by such. This may lead to a delay in the processing or a denial of refinancing.
- 7. The Homeowner shall direct all contacts with town counsel as to closing date, etc.
- 8. Town Counsel will inform WTAHC of the closing and provide a copy of the recorded documents along with an invoice of cost for services pertaining to the WTAHC refinance involvement.
- 9. WTAHC staff will provide a copy of the recorded Housing Covenant to the DCRHA for reference in future affordability monitoring.

West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee PO Box 278, West Tisbury, MA

affordhouse@westtisbury.ma-gov

Dukes County Regional Housing Authority, P.O. Box 4538, Vineyard Haven MA 02568

www.vineyardhousing.org

508-693-4419

Adding/Deleting Name to Deed during Refinance

If you will "convey' the home from your spouse/co-owner, WTAHC considers this a transfer

of the property. The following describes the procedure for this transfer:

<u>Deletion: The closing attorney will prepare a new deed in your name alone that WTAHC must review</u> <u>prior recording. The new deed must specifically reference the current deed rider (listing the book and page numbers of the original deed rider).</u>

Addition: The same process will apply if you are adding your spouse (husband or wife) to the Deed.

Note: The Deed rider (covenant) may have explexsive clauses pertaining to transfer of property that must be followed.

#### **MORTGAGE GUIDLEINES**

Your proposed new first or second mortgage should at a minimum meet the following guidelines:

- 1. <u>Be a fully –amortizing fixed-rate mortgage with no prepayment penalty or balloon payment.</u>
- 2. <u>Have a current fair market interest rate</u>. (No more than 2 % points above the currently prevailing interest rate).
- 3. <u>For a first mortgage refinance: Have a loan amount no greater than 80% of the maximum</u> resale price.
- 4. <u>For a second mortgage. The combined amount of the first and second mortgages may not exceed 80% of the maximum resale price.</u>

WTAHC may deny your request to refinance, or require that you consult with a non-profit credit counselor if the benefit of the loan is unclear. Examples of this may include loans with high closing costs, or a higher interest rate than you currently hold.

Draft Revised 2-9-16

## West Tisbury Affordable Home

## Resale and Transfer Procedures

The West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee (WTAHC) wants to make sure you are aware of the <u>obligations if or when you</u> resale or transfer your home. The Affordable Housing Covenant that is included in your deed documents and recorded at the Dukes County Registry of Deeds states that you must receive approval from the WTAHC before you may resale or transfer your home.

- 1. When the Owner of a West Tisbury property under a Housing Covenant or Deed Rider preserving long term affordability wishes to resale or transfer their property, the Owner shall notify the WTAHC and the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority (DCRHA) in writing <u>stating</u> the Owner's intention (the Resale "Notice"). Please make note of your present covenant or deed rider of the restrictions within dealing with the resale and transfer of the property. <u>This notice should state the full name of the property owner, physical and mailing addresses, and phone number.</u>
- 2. Upon receipt of the Notice, staff of the WTAHC and DCRHA shall confer and determine the current Maximum Resale Price of the Property based upon the terms of the existing Covenant or Deed Rider. This will be presented to the WTAHC for review and confirmation. The Owner will be notified of the current Maximum Resale Price by phone, if possible, followed by written confirmation within 30 days of the WTAHC receiving the Resale Notice.
- 3. At this time as stated in the covenant, the Owner shall seek to find an Eligible Purchaser as described based on the terms of the existing covenant or deed rider. The Owner must use his best efforts to find an Eligible Purchaser to purchase the property. The term "best efforts" as used herein shall mean (A) the placement of an advertisement for sale of the Property stating the Maximum Resale Price (as defined), Owner's telephone number, and the phrase: "Sale of unit subject to certain guidelines and restrictions with respect to the maintenance and retention of affordable housing for households of low and moderate income" and (B) the receipt of satisfactory evidence to the AHC and the Monitoring Agent (DCRHA) that the new purchaser qualifies as an Eligible Purchaser. WTAHC and DCRHA may assist in this effort.
- 4. Upon location of an Eligible Purchaser the Homeowner shall inform the WTAHC and DCRHA for confirmation of such. The Homeowner shall inform the Eligible Purchaser they must complete an application with the DCRHA for qualification of purchase. This application shall request financial information including income and assets. If approved by the DCRHA as an Eligible Purchaser the WTAHC shall be informed. WTAHC will contact the present homeowner of approval and will set a meeting date with said Eligible Purchaser. The WTAHC will send before the meeting the documents (Certificate of Approval, Affordable Housing Covenant, Town Mortgage, Permitted Mortgage Agreement) required by the Town to purchase an affordable home. These **current** required documents are for the Eligible Purchaser to review and share with their prospective lender and/or attorney. It should be noted in the documents that a fixed

- mortgage is required for purchase. At the meeting the WTAHC may answer any questions the prospective Eligible Purchaser may have about the documents, etc. This phase of the process may take up to 30 days.
- 5. If the Eligible Purchaser does not meet the eligible criteria the present homeowner will be informed by phone and written notice as well as the Eligible Purchaser within 21 days. This will start the Eligible Purchaser search again. DCRHA and WTAHC are available for assistance at any time during this process.
- 6. The Eligible Purchaser and Present Homeowner shall inform the WTAHC of the lender and/or attorney name, address and phone number so they may inform WTAHC's counsel who shall handle the preparations of the WTAHC's required documents (mentioned above).
- 7. The Eligible Purchaser will need to present the mortgage documents to the WTAHC for approval before final approval of purchase. Approval may take up to 30 days.
- 8. After approval of mortgage Town Counsel shall handle the closing process and attend the closing on the Town's behalf. Town Counsel will confer with Eligible Purchaser's attorney and/or lender to complete the signing and recording of such at the loan closing. WTAHC's counsel shall gather the necessary town officials' signatures within 21 days of receiving all necessary information from the Eligible Purchaser's counsel and/or lender and WTAHC. To keep the process in motion all parties should be kept abreast of any developments involving the Town participation in this purchase by homeowner, eligible purchaser, lender and attorneys.

At no time is WTAHC's counsel to be considered the Homeowner or Eligible Purchaser's counselor or used as such. WTAHC's counsel is only involved to facilitate the processing of the WTAHC's required documents.

Please feel free to contact the WTAHC by email or phone to ask any questions or discuss any issues you may want brought to the WTAHC's attention.

West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee affordhouse@westtisbury.ma-gov

**PO Box 278** 

West Tisbury Ma 02575

Dukes County Regional Housing Authority (DCRHA)

**Email** 

PO Box

Vineyard Haven, MA

Phone